
UNITED  ST  ATES

ENVIRONMENT  AL  PROTECTION  AGENCY

REGION  2

IN  THE  MATTER  OF:

Neiv  York  City  Economic  Development

Corporatioxi

1 Liberty  Plaza

New  York,  New  York  10006

Respondent.

Proceeding Ixirshiant to Section 105(a) of  the
Marine  Protection,  Researcli.  and  Sanctitaries

Act.  33 u.s.c.  ',,S 1415(a).

CONSENT  AGREEMENT

AND  FINAL  ORDER

Docket  No.

MPRSA-02-2025-6003

I. PRELIMINARY  ST  ATEMENT

].  Tliis  is a civil  adininistrative  proceeding  for  the  assessment  of  a civil  penalty  instithited

I:ihirsuant to Section I 05(a) of the Marine Protection, Researcli, aiid Sanctciaries Act ("MPRSA=
or "Act"),  33 u.s.c.  g 1415(a).

2.  Tlie  United  States  Environinental  Protection  Agei"icy  ("EPA"  or  "Coinplainant")  iSshied  a

coinplaint  on Decen"iber  4, 2024,  entitled  Coinplaint,  Findings  of  Violation,  Notice  of  Proposed

Assessment  of  a Civil  Penalty,  and  Notice  of  Opportbinity  to Reqhiest  a Hearing  ("Complaint")

against  tlie  New  York  City  Econoinic  Developinent  Corporation  ("NYCEDC"  or  "Respondent")

(Docket  No.  MPRSA-02-2025-6003),  phirsciant  to Section  105(a)  of  the  MPRSA,  33 U.S.C.  (,S

141  5(a).

3.  Coinplainant  and  Respondent  (collectisiely,  tlie  "Parties")  agree  tliat  settlement  of  tliis

inatter  is appropriate  and  that  tlie  entry  of  tliis  Consent  Agreement  and its ii'icorporation  into  a

Final  Order  ("CAFO")  witliocit  fhirther  litigation  and  withohit  adjudicatioi'i  of  any  isscie  of  fact  or

law  is tlie  most  appropriate  ineaiis  of  reso)vii'ig  this  matter.

II,  FINDINGS

4.  Phirsciant  to Section  105(a)  of  the MPRSA,  33 U.S.C.  t,S 1415(a),  the Administrator  of  the

EPA  is authorized  to assess  pei'ialties  against  persons  wlio  violate  Section  10 l(a)  of  the MPRSA,

33 u.s.c.  141 l(a).  Tlie  Adininistrator  lias delegated  tliis  autliority  to tlie  Regional  Adininistrator

of  EPA  Region  2, wlio  in thirn  has delegated  it to tlie  Director.  Ei'iforcen'ient  and Coinpliance

Assurance  Divisioi"i  of  EPA  Region  2.
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5. NYCEDC  is a "person"  as defined  ii'i Section  103  of  the  MPRSA,  33 u.s.c.  § l 402(e).

6. NYCEDC  )iolds  a perinit  (permit  no. NAN-2022-00270)  isShied by the u.s. Ariny  Corps

of  Engineers  (tlie  "Permit")  ahithorizing  removal  of  334,000  cubic  yards  of  inaterial  froin  the

Manhattan  Crciise  Terminal  in the  Hudson  River  and  tlie  placement  of  tlie  dredged  material  into

tlie  Historic  Area  Reinediation  Site  ("HARS").

7. Donjon  Marine  Co.,  Inc.  ("Donjon")  is pai'ty  to a shibcontract  whereby  it agreed  to

perforin  tl'ie dredging  and  disposal  activities  set forth  in the  l)erinit.

8 The  Complaint  charges  Respoiident  with  violating  Section  101(a)  of  tl'ie MPRSA,  33

U.S.C. SS 1411(a), by Scow Witte 4004' iin1:iroperly  discharging dredged i'i'iaterial  into an area
outside  of  tlie  approved  ocean  placeinent  site  witliin  tlie  HARS  on September  27,  2023.

8. The  Findiiqgs  of  Violation  in the  Complaint  are incorporated  by reference  liereii'i.

9. This CAFO is isscied in accordance with 40 C.F.R. 5S 22.18(b) and (c) of tlie
"Consolidated  Rules  of  Practice  Governing  the  Administrative  Assessinent  of  Civil  Penalties,

Issuai'ice  of  Compliance  or Corrective  Action  Orders,  and  tlie  Revocation,  Terinination  or

Suspensioi'i  of  Perinits"  ("CROP"),  wliicli  sets  forth  procedhires  wliere  the parties  agree  to the

settlement  of  an action,  and  allows  for  conclcision  of  administrative  civil  penalty  assessinent

proceedings  tlirohigh  the isshiance  of  a coi'isent  agreeinent  and final  order.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  before  tl'ie taking  of  any  testii'i'iony,  hipon  tlie  pleadings,  withohit

adjhidication of any issbie of fact or law, and Lll)011 consent ai'id agreement of the Parties, it is
l'iereby  agreed  and  ordered  as follows:

III.  TERMS  OF  SETTLEMENT

10.  For  tlie  phirposes  of  tliis  proceeding,  Respoiident:

a. Admits  the  jcirisdictional  allegations  of  the  Coinplaii'it;

b.  Neit)ier  admits  i'ior  denies  tlie  facthial  or i"ion-jhirisdictional  allegations  contained  in

tl'ie Complaint;

c.  Waives  its rigl"it  to contest  tlie  allegations,  to a judicial  or adininistrative  liearing,

or  to appeal  tliis  CAFO;  and

d.  Consents  to the issciance  of  tliis  CAFO  and  consents  to tlie  payment  of  tlie  civil

penalty  cited  in tlie  foregoing  paragraph.

1 1. Phirsciant  to Section  1 05(a)  of  the  MPRSA,  33 U.S.C.  ,,s 1415(a),  tlie  EPA  has deterinined

that  an appropriate  civil  penalty  to settle  this  actioii  is in tlie  amount  of  one  hundred  tliirty-

eiglit  tliousand  six  liundred  seventy-one  ($ 138,671).  Tlie  EPA  has considered  the nature  of  the

Tlie scow is iinproperly  nained in tlie Coinplaint  as Scow W4044.
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violation,  the existence  of  any  prior  violations,  and  tlie  deinonstrated  good  faitl'i  of  tlie

Respoi'idei'it.

12. In fhill  and  final  settleinent  of  t)ie  violations  asserted  in tl'ie Findings  section  of  this

CAFO,  Respondent,  by and  tlirocigli  its scib-contractor  Donjon  ai"id phirsuant  to an independent

agreement  between  Respondent  and  Donjon,  sliall  be liable  to pay  the civil  penalty  in accordai'ice

witl'i  the  tern'is  set fortli  below:

PAYMENT  OF  CIVIL  PENALTY

13.  No  later  tlian  tliirty  (30)  days  after  the  date  of  signathire  on the  Final  Order,  Respondent

sl"iall  pay  tlie  penalty  of  one  hundred  tliirty-eiglit  thousand  six  hundred  seventy-one  ($

138,671) cising a inetliod described at l'ittli://www.epa.zov/financial/additional-instructions-

making-)iayments-epa,  and  shall  identify  such  payment  as "Docket  No.  MPRSA-02-2025-6003.

Respondent  sl'iall  not  inake  pa)iinent  cintil  after  tlie  effective  date  of  the Final  Order.  Any

payment  received  before  tl'ie effective  date  of  the  Final  Order  will  be retcirned  and Respondent

will  be reqhiired  to isshie  a new  payinent.

14.  Respondent  sliall  send  a record  of  payment  siinultaneously  with  payinent  to:

Zoe  01dliain

Office  of  Regional  Cohii"isel

u.s. Enviroiunental  Protection  Agency,  Region  2

290  Broadway,  16"'  Floor

New  York,  NY  10007

Oldl'iam.Zoe@epa.gov

and

Karen  Maples

Regional  I-Iearing  Clerk

u.s. Eiwironinental  Protection  Agency,  Region  2

290  Broadway,  171h Floor

New  York,  NY  10007

Region2RegionalHearingClerk@epa.gov

15.  Pa)iinent  imist  be received  at tl'ie above  address  no later  than  tliirty  (30)  calendar  days

after  the  date  of  signature  of  tlie  Order.  The  date  by  wliicli  payinent  nuist  be received  shall

hereafter  be referred  to as the  "dhie  date."

16.  If  payment  is not  received  on or before  tlie  ckie date,  interest  will  be assessed  at the

anmial  rate  establislied  by tlie  Secretary  of  Treashire  pursuant  to the  Debt  Collection

Iinproveinent  Act,  31 U.S.C.  ,,(1 37l7,  on the overdue  ainohuqt  fron'i  tlie  dhie date  throcigli  the date

of  payinent.
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17.  Tlie  penalty  to be paid  is a civil  penalty  assessed  by the  EPA  and  sl'iall  not  be deckictible

froin  the Respondent's  federal  or state  taxes.

18. Failure to pair tlie penalty in fhill according to the above provisions inay reshilt  in a referral
of  this  matter  to the United  States  Departinent  ofJcistice  or the United  States  Department  of

Treasury  for  collection.

IV,  OTHER  TERMS  AND  CONDITIONS

19. By  sigt'iing  this  CAFO,  Respondent  uiaives  any  riglits  or defenses  tl'iat  Respondent  has or

may  have  for  tliis  inatter  to be resolved  in federal  court,  inclhiding  bhit not  liinited  to any  i'iglit  to

a jhiry  trial,  and waives  any  riglit  to cliallenge  tlie  lawfhilness  of  tlie  Final  Order  accon"ipanying

tlie  Consei'it  Agreen"ient.

20.  Tliis  CAFO  shall  apply  to and  be binding  hipon  Respondent  and  shall  apply  to aiid  be

binding  hipon  tlie  Respondent's  officers,  directors,  and  en'iployees,  in t)ieir  capacities  as

representatives  of  Respondent  as well  as on the Respondent's  successors  and  assigns,  including,

bcit not  lin'iited  to,  Respondent's  shibseqcient  phircliasers.

21. This  CAFO  constithites  a settlemei'it  by tlie  EPA  of  all  claii'iqs  for  civil  penalties  purshiant

to the  MPRSA  for  the  violations  alleged  in the  Complaint,  inclciding  in connection  with  Scow

Witte  4004.  Notliing  in this  CAFO  sliall  be constrhied  as prol'iibiting,  altering  or ii'i  aii)i  way

limitillg  tl'ie ability  of  EPA  to seek  any  otlier  reinedies  or  sanctioi'is  available  ly  virthie  of

Respondent's  violation  of  tliis  CAFO  or for  hiiirelated  violatioi'is  of  the statutes  and  regcilations

Lll)011 which this CAFO is based, or for Respondent's violation  of any applicable provision  oflaw,
tqor shall  it be construed  as a waiver  of  any  defense,  objection  or response  tlie  Respoiqdent  i'iqay

assert  ii'i  respoiise  to any  claiin  that  the  CAFO  is violated.

22. Tliis  CAFO  sliall  not  relieve  Respondent  of  its obligation  to coinply  with  all  applicable

provisions  of  federal,  state  or  local  law,  nor  sliall  it be construed  to be a niliiig  oi'i,  or

determination  of,  any  isshie related  to any  federal,  state  or  local  perinit.

23.  Con'i))fiance  uiitli  tl'iis  CAFO  shall  not  be a defei'ise  to any  actions  hinrelated  to tlie

violations  alleged  in tlie  Coinplaint  subseqhiently  coi'iqinenced  purshiant  to federal  laws  and

reghilations  adn'iinistered  by the EPA,  and  it is tlie  responsibility  of  Respondent  to coinply  witli

such  laws  and  reghilations.

24.  Eacli  hindersigned  representative  of  the  parties  to this  Consent  Agreeinent  certifies  tliat  lie

or slie  is fully  autliorized  by tlie  party  represented  to enter  into  the  terins  and  coi'iditions  of  tliis

CAFO  ai'id to execute  and legally  bind  tliat  party  to it.

25.  Each  party  sliall  bear  its owi"i  costs  and  attorney's  fees  in connection  witli  tlie  action

resolved  by this  CAFO.

26. Respondent consents to service Lll)011 Respondent by a copy of tliis CAFO by an EPA
employee  other  tlian  tlie  Regional  Hearing  Clerk.
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V. SIGNATURE

Date:

Date: /'%1 , '2ou

Douglas  McKenna,  Acting  Director

Enforcemeiit  and Comp,l,iance  Assurance  Division

u.s. Eipental  Pitec3jon Agency, Region 2
(-
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UNITED  ST  ATES

ENVIRONMENT  AL  PROTECTION  AGENCY

REGION  2

IN  THE  MATTER  OF:

New  York  City  Economic  Development

Corporation

l Liberty  Plaza

New  York,  New  York  10006

Respondent.

Proceednig  phirshiant  to Section  I 05(a)  of  the

Marine  Protection,  Researcli,  and  Sanctuaries

Act, 33 u.s.c.  5 1415(a).

FINAL  ORDER

Docket  No.

MPRSA-02-2025-6003

Tlie  Regional  Adininistrator  of  the United  States  Eiwironinental  Protection  Agency,  Region  2,

vested  by acitliority  delegated  by  tlie  Administrator  of  tlie  United  States  Eiwironmental  Protection

Agency  ("EPA")  aiid  liavii'ig  furtlier  re-delegated  shicli  ahithority  to tlie  Regional  Judicial  Officer,

Region  2, EPA,  ratifies  tlie  foregoing  Consent  Agreeinent.  Tlie  Agreement  entered  into  by t)'ie

Parties  is liereby  approved,  incorporated  lierein,  and  issued  as an Order.  Tlie  effective  date  of  this

Order  shall  be tlie  date  of  filing  with  the Regioiial  Hearing  Clerk,  United  States  Environinental

Protectioi'i  Agency,  Region  2, New  York,  New  York.

DATED:

Dana  P. Friedinan

Regional  Jhidicial  Officer

u.s. Environinental  Protection  Agency,  Region  2

290  Broadway-1  6tli  Floor

New  York,  New  YOl'k,  10007
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